



REPORT PREPARED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF PARQUES REUNIDOS SERVICIOS CENTRALES, S.A. IN RELATION TO THE PROPOSED STATUTORY AMENDMENTS INCLUDED UNDER ITEMS TWO, THREE AND FOUR OF THE AGENDA OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS CALLED TO BE HELD ON 29 OCTOBER 2019 AND ON 30 OCTOBER 2019, ON FIRST AND SECOND CALL, RESPECTIVELY.

The Board of Directors of Parques Reunidos Servicios Centrales, S.A. (“**Parques Reunidos**” or the “**Company**”), at the request of the Offeror, hereby complies with the provisions of article 286 of the Spanish Companies Act (*Ley de Sociedades de Capital*), explaining and justifying the proposed resolutions and including the consolidated text of the proposed statutory amendments.

Within the framework of the takeover bid for the shares of the Company made by Piolin BidCo, S.A.U. (the “**Offeror**”), which was authorized by the Spanish National Securities Market Commission (*Comisión Nacional del Mercado de Valores*) (the “**CNMV**”) on 24 July 2019 and which result was published by the CNMV on 12 September 2019 (the “**Offer**”), the Offeror has requested the Board of Directors of the Company to call an Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders in order to submit for its review the delisting of the shares representing the entire Company’s share capital from the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges, as expressed in the prospectus of the Offer.

In view of the foregoing, and at the request of the Offeror, the Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting the approval of the aforementioned delisting under item One of the agenda and, subject to its effectiveness, also submits for approval the following resolutions:

- (i) Amendment of the Company’s administration regime, which will be administered by a sole director and subsequent amendment of the Articles of Association, under item Two on the agenda.

At the request of the Offeror, and pursuant to the provisions of article 210 of the Spanish Companies Act, it is proposed to amend the Company’s administration regime. The Company would then be governed by a sole director.

It is proposed to subject the effectiveness of this resolution to the effective delisting of the shares pursuant to the provisions of article 529 *bis* of the Spanish Companies Act.

Consequently, it is proposed to amend article 27 (Board of Directors. Powers) of the Articles of Association and to redraft articles 3 (Registered office and corporate website), 10 (Uncalled contributions), 11 (Corporate bodies), 14 (Authority to call General Meeting), 19 (Representation at the General Meeting), 22 (Remote voting), 23 (General Meeting Officers), 26 (Minutes of Meeting), 29 (Term of office), 31 (Company action for liability. Standing of minority), 36 (Board of Directors minutes), 37 (Powers of representation) and 41 (Preparation and verification of the annual accounts). It is also proposed to remove articles 28 (Composition of the management body), 32 (Appointment to positions on the Board of Directors), 33 (Call of Board of Directors), 34 (Board of Directors quorum), 35 (Manner of deliberation and adoption of resolutions of the Board of Directors), 38 (Delegation of authority), 39 (Audit and Control Committee. Composition, authority and functioning) and 40 (Appointments and Remuneration Committee. Composition, authority and functioning) of the Articles of Association and to renumber the remaining statutory articles accordingly.

(ii) Amendment of the compensation for the position of director and subsequent amendment of the Articles of Association, under item Three on the agenda.

At the request of the Offeror, it is proposed to modify the compensation for the position of director of the Company so that, subject to the effective delisting of the shares, said position becomes not remunerated.

Consequently, it is proposed to amend article 30 (Compensation of the position), which will then become article 28 according to the renumbering of the proposed consolidated text.

(iii) Approval of a new text of the of the Articles of Association, under item Four on the agenda.

The purpose of the new text of the Articles of Association proposed to the General Meeting of Shareholders is, in addition to reflecting the proposals of previous resolutions, to adapt the statutory content to the regulations that will be applicable to



the Company in the event that its shares are delisted and, therefore, has no longer the status of listed company.

At the request of the Offeror, and pursuant to the provisions of article 197 *bis* of the Spanish Companies Act, it is proposed to submit to a vote the statutory amendments according to the following groups of articles:

(a) *Amendment of article 8 (Co-ownership, usufruct and pledge of shares)*

It is proposed to amend article 8 of the Articles of Association which sets out, among other things, the applicable regime to the Company's shares that are pledged.

(b) *Amendment of article 11 (Corporate bodies) of Title III (Corporate bodies)*

It is proposed to amend article 11 of the Articles of Association in order to remove the references to the Regulations of the General Meeting of Shareholders and of the Board of Directors, which are expected to be repealed once the shares of the Company are delisted.

(c) *Amendment of articles 12 (General Shareholders Meeting), 14 (Authority to call General Meeting), 15 (Notice of call), 19 (Representation at the General Meeting), 20 (Place and time of holding the Meeting. Adjournment of Meetings), 21 (Right to information), 22 (Remote voting) and 25 (Adoption of resolutions), removal of article 17 (Equal treatment) and subsequent renumbering of the articles included in Chapter I (The General Shareholders Meeting) of Title III (Corporate bodies)*

It is proposed to amend articles 12, 14, 15, 19, 20, 21, 22 and 25 of the Articles of Association and to remove article 17, renumbering the statutory articles accordingly in order to (a) adapt its content to the provisions applicable to non-listed companies and (b) remove the references to the Regulations of the General Meeting of Shareholders which is repealed under item Five of the agenda.



- (d) *Amendment of articles 29 (Term of office) and 31 (Company action for liability. Standing of minority) included in Chapter II (Management Body) of Title III (Corporate Bodies)*

It is proposed to amend articles 29 and 31 of the Articles of Association in order to adapt its content to the provisions applicable to non-listed companies.

- (e) *Amendment of article 43 (Deposit of approved annual accounts)*

It is proposed to amend article 43 of the Articles of Association in order to simplify the procedures for the deposit of annual accounts.

- (f) *Removal of the Transitional Provision*

It is proposed to remove the Transitional Provision of the Articles of Association as it no longer applies.

The new text of the Articles of Association that it is proposed for approval is attached hereto as **Annex I** to this report. Likewise, it is attached as **Annex II** a comparative document reflecting all the proposed amendments.

The consolidated text of the aforementioned proposed resolutions is as follows:

“ITEM TWO ON THE AGENDA

Management body: Amendment of the structure of the management body, acknowledgment of all directors’ cessation and appointment of a sole director, all the foregoing subject to the effective delisting of the Company’s shares:

Second A: Amendment, where appropriate, of the way to manage the Company and resulting amendment of article 27 (Board of Directors. Powers) of the Articles of Association and redraft of articles 3 (Registered office and corporate website), 10 (Uncalled contributions), 11 (Corporate bodies), 14 (Authority to call General Meeting), 19 (Representation at the General Meeting), 22 (Remote voting), 23 (General Meeting Officers), 26 (Minutes of Meeting), 29 (Term of office), 31 (Company action for liability. Standing of minority), 37 (Powers of representation) and 41 (Preparation and verification of the annual accounts), and removal of articles 28 (Composition of the management body),



32 (Appointment to positions on the Board of Directors), 33 (Call of Board of Directors), 34 (Board of Directors quorum), 35 (Manner of deliberation and adoption of resolutions of the Board of Directors), 36 (Board of Directors minutes), 38 (Delegation of authority), 39 (Audit and Control Committee. Composition, authority and functioning) and 40 (Appointments and Remuneration Committee. Composition, authority and functioning) of the Articles of Association and renumbering of the remaining statutory articles accordingly. Acknowledgment of all directors' cessation.

In view of the potential delisting of the Company's shares, at the request of the Offeror, and pursuant to the provisions of article 210 of the Spanish Companies Act, it is agreed to amend the Company's administration regime. The Company will then be governed by a sole director.

Consequently, taking into account the new structure of the Company's management body, the Audit and Control Committee and the Appointments and Remunerations Committee are terminated. The Regulations of the Board of Directors is therefore repealed and overruled.

Likewise, it is agreed to amend article 27 (Board of Directors. Powers) of the Articles of Association and to redraft articles 3 (Registered office and corporate website), 10 (Uncalled contributions), 11 (Corporate bodies), 14 (Authority to call General Meeting), 19 (Representation at the General Meeting), 22 (Remote voting), 23 (General Meeting Officers), 26 (Minutes of Meeting), 29 (Term of office), 31 (Company action for liability. Standing of minority), 37 (Powers of representation) and 41 (Preparation and verification of the annual accounts) in order to reflect the new structure of the governing body and to remove all references to the Board of Directors. The referred articles will be drafted as stated in the consolidated text of the Articles of Association approved under item Four G below.

For the same reason, it is agreed to remove articles 28 (Composition of the management body), 32 (Appointment to positions on the Board of Directors), 33 (Call of Board of Directors), 34 (Board of Directors quorum), 35 (Manner of deliberation and adoption of resolutions of the Board of Directors), 36 (Board of Directors minutes), 38 (Delegation of authority), 39 (Audit and Control Committee. Composition, authority and functioning) and 40 (Appointments and Remuneration Committee. Composition, authority and functioning) of the



Articles of Association and to renumber the remaining articles according to the referred consolidated text.

The effectiveness of this resolution is subject to the effective delisting of the Company's shares from the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges.

Lastly, in view of the foregoing, the cessation of all the directors of the Company from all the positions held on the board and its committees, whose identification data is recorded in the Commercial Registry of Madrid, is hereby acknowledge. The referred cessations will be effective from the date of delisting of the Company's shares. The Company fully approves their management to date. All of them are thanked for the services rendered in the exercise of their positions.”

“ITEM THREE ON THE AGENDA

Repeal, where appropriate, of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, amendment of director’s remuneration and resulting amendment of article 30 (Compensation of the position) of the Articles of Association, all the foregoing subject to the effective delisting of the Company’s shares.

In view of the potential delisting of the Company’s shares, and at the request of the Offeror, it is agreed to repeal and overrule the Remuneration Policy for the Board of Directors currently in force.

Likewise, it is agreed to modify the compensation for the position of director of the Company, which will not be remunerated.

Consequently, it is agreed to amend article 30 (Compensation of the position) of the Company’s Articles of Association. The referred article will be renumbered as article 28 and will be drafted as stated in the consolidated text of the Articles of Association approved under item Four G below.

Pursuant to article 529 septdecies et seq. of the Spanish Companies Act, the effectiveness of this resolution is subject to the effective delisting of the Company's shares from the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges.”

“ITEM FOUR ON THE AGENDA

Amendment of the following articles of the Articles of Association and approval of a new consolidated text, all the foregoing subject to the effective delisting of the Company’s shares:

*In view of the potential delisting of the Company’s shares and with the aim of adapting the Articles of Association to the Company’s status as a non-listed company, the following amendments to the Articles of Association are hereby approved. The report from the directors issued in relation to the statutory amendments proposed to the General Meeting includes, as **Annex I**, the new wording of the consolidated text of the Company’s Articles of Association and, as **Annex II**, the proposed amendments reflecting the modifications against the previous version of the Company’s Articles of Association. The amendments are submitted to a vote by the following groups of articles:*

Fourth A: Amendment of articles regarding the pledge of Company shares: Article 8 (Co-ownership, usufruct and pledge of shares).

It is agreed to amend article 8 of the Articles of Association which sets out, among other things, the applicable regime to the Company’s shares that are pledged.

The effectiveness of this resolution is subject to the effective delisting of the Company’s shares from the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges.

Fourth B: Amendment of articles regarding the Regulations of the General Meeting of Shareholders and of the Board of Directors: Article 11 (Corporate bodies).

It is agreed to amend article 11 of the Articles of Association in order to remove the references to the Regulations of the General Meeting of Shareholders and of the Board of Directors, which will be repealed once the shares of the Company are delisted.

The effectiveness of this resolution is subject to the effective delisting of the Company's shares from the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges.

Fourth C: Amendment of articles regarding the General Shareholders Meeting: 12 (General Shareholders Meeting), 14 (Authority to call General Meeting), 15 (Notice of call), 19 (Representation at the General Meeting), 20 (Place and time of holding the Meeting. Adjournment of Meetings), 21 (Right to information), 22 (Remote voting) and 25 (Adoption of resolutions), removal of article 17 (Equal treatment) and subsequent renumbering of articles.

It is agreed to amend articles 12, 14, 15, 19, 20, 21, 22 and 25 of the Articles of Association and to remove article 17, renumbering the statutory articles accordingly in order to (a) adapt its content to the provisions applicable to non-listed companies and (b) remove the references to the Regulations of the General Meeting of Shareholders which is repealed under item Five below.

The effectiveness of this resolution is subject to the effective delisting of the Company's shares from the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges.

Fourth D: Amendment of other articles in order to adapt its content to the provisions applicable to non-listed companies: articles 29 (Term of office) and 31 (Company action for liability. Standing of minority) and subsequent renumbering of articles.

It is agreed to amend articles 29 and 31 of the Articles of Association in order to adapt its content to the provisions applicable to non-listed companies.

The effectiveness of this resolution is subject to the effective delisting of the Company's shares from the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges.



Fourth E: Amendment of articles in order to simplify the procedures for the deposit of annual accounts: Article 43 (Deposit of approved annual accounts).

It is agreed to amend article 43 of the Articles of Association in order to simplify the procedures for the deposit of annual accounts.

Fourth F: Removal of the Transitional Provision related to the modification to the financial year.

It is agreed to remove the Transitional Provision of the Articles of Association as it no longer applies.

The effectiveness of this resolution is subject to the effective delisting of the Company's shares from the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges.

Fourth G: Review and, where appropriate, approval of a new text of the Articles of Association.

It is agreed to approve the new consolidated text of the Articles of Association which is attached as Annex I to the directors' report that has been made available to shareholders pursuant to the provisions of the Law.

Likewise, for exhaustive purposes, it is hereby stated that the approved consolidated text of the Articles of Association reflects the statutory amendments approved under items Two and Three above in relation to the change in the Company's administration regime and the modification of the compensation for the position of director.

The effectiveness of this resolution is subject to the effective delisting of the Company's shares from the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock Exchanges.”

Madrid, 26 September 2019



Annex I. Consolidated text of the Articles of Association

**ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF PARQUES REUNIDOS SERVICIOS
CENTRALES, S.A.**

29 October 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | |
|--|----------|
| TITLE I.- GENERAL PROVISIONS | 4 |
| Article 1.- Corporate name | 4 |
| Article 2.- Corporate purpose | 4 |
| Article 3.- Registered office and corporate website | 5 |
| Article 4.- Term of Company, commencement of operations and financial year | 6 |
| TITLE II.- CAPITAL, SHARES AND RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF SHARES ... | 6 |
| Article 5.- Shares and capital | 6 |
| Article 6.- Representation of shares | 6 |
| Article 7.- Shareholders status. Rights inherent in that status | 7 |
| Article 8.- Co-ownership, usufruct and pledge of shares | 7 |
| Article 9.- Scheme for transfer of shares..... | 8 |
| Article 10.- Uncalled contributions | 8 |
| TITLE III.- CORPORATE BODIES..... | 9 |
| Article 11.- Corporate bodies | 9 |
| CHAPTER I.- THE GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING..... | 9 |
| Article 12.- General Shareholders Meeting..... | 9 |
| Article 13.- Kinds of General Meetings | 9 |
| Article 14.- Authority to call General Meeting | 10 |
| Article 15.- Notice of call..... | 10 |
| Article 16.- Quorum for General Meeting..... | 11 |
| Article 17.- Entitlement to attend | 12 |
| Article 18.- Representation at the General Meeting..... | 12 |
| Article 19.- Place and time of holding the Meeting. Adjournment of Meetings..... | 13 |

| | |
|---|-----------|
| Article 20.- Right to information..... | 13 |
| Article 21.- Remote voting | 14 |
| Article 22.- General Meeting Officers..... | 15 |
| Article 23.- Manner of deliberating at the General Meeting | 15 |
| Article 24.- Adoption of resolutions..... | 15 |
| Article 25.- Minutes of Meeting | 16 |
| CHAPTER II.- MANAGEMENT BODY | 17 |
| Article 26.- Sole director. Powers | 17 |
| Article 27.- Term of office | 17 |
| Article 28.- Compensation of the position | 17 |
| Article 29.- Company action for liability. Standing of minority | 17 |
| Article 30.- Powers of representation | 18 |
| TITLE IV.- ANNUAL ACCOUNTS | 18 |
| Article 31.- Preparation and verification of the annual accounts | 18 |
| Article 32.- Approval of annual accounts and application of results | 18 |
| Article 33.- Deposit of approved annual accounts | 19 |
| TITLE V.- WINDING UP AND LIQUIDATION OF THE COMPANY..... | 19 |
| Article 34.- Winding up of the company..... | 19 |
| Article 35.- Liquidation | 19 |

**ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF PARQUES REUNIDOS SERVICIOS
CENTRALES, S.A.**

TITLE I.- GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1.- Corporate name

The company is named Parques Reunidos Servicios Centrales, S.A. (hereinafter the "**Company**") and is governed by these Articles and, by way of supplement, by the rules in the Recast Text of the Spanish Companies Law, approved by Royal Legislative Decree 1/2010 of 2 July 2010 (the "**Spanish Companies Law**").

Article 2.- Corporate purpose

The purpose of the Company is:

1. the promotion, development, construction, installation and exploitation of all kinds of leisure and entertainment businesses and activities, of real estate properties owned or leased, or by means of surface rights, administrative concession and any other form of transfer of right to use.
2. to render services of management, administration and/or strategic business consulting regarding the development, strategic growth and investment plans to companies in which the Company holds, directly or indirectly, a shareholding.
3. the advice to companies in which the Company holds (directly or indirectly) a shareholding, referring such advice to potential investments or acquisitions in the domestic and/or international market in the management and exploitation of amusement parks, sports facilities and leisure and entertainment of any kind or any other sector of corresponding to a related activity, precedent, consequential or otherwise related to the previous sector.
4. the ownership, management, acquisition and sale of securities and shares in companies, in accordance, in all cases, to the provisions of the Securities Market legislation.

5. to render services of advice or consulting regarding the preliminary stage, the management, development and/or commercial exploitation of leisure and entertainment businesses and activities.

The activities comprising the corporate purpose may be undertaken both in Spain and abroad, either directly by the Company or indirectly, in whole or in part, through the ownership of shares or interest in companies with identical or analogous corporate purpose. The interest will comprise the subscription, purchase or acquisition by any means valid by law, of mercantile values or titles which grant an interest in the share capital or profits of such companies, as any modality of association between companies.

They are excluded from the Company's purpose those activities whose exercise require by law any kind of special requirements which are not complied with by the Company.

Article 3.- Registered office and corporate website

1. The Company will have its registered address at Paseo de la Castellana, 216, 28046, Madrid, España.
2. The management body may change the registered office within the national territory (by amending this article in order to include herein the new registered office), as well as establish, close or transfer commercial, administrative or warehousing facilities, factories, agencies, representations, offices or branches, anywhere in Spanish territory and abroad.
3. The Company will have a corporate website on the terms established in the Spanish Companies Law, which will be registered in the Commercial Registry. The documents containing information required by law, these Articles of Association and any other internal rules will be published on the aforesaid corporate website, as will all information deemed appropriate to be made available to the shareholders and investors in this way.
4. Amendment, transfer and/or elimination of the Company's corporate website will be within the authority of the Management Body, without prejudice to the permanent delegation of powers that the Management Body may grant.

Article 4.- Term of Company, commencement of operations and financial year

1. The Company will have an indefinite term.
2. The Company commenced operations on the date of execution of the deed of establishment, i.e., 23 November 2006.
3. The financial year will commence on 1 January and end on 31 December of each year.

TITLE II.- CAPITAL, SHARES AND RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF SHARES

Article 5.- Shares and capital

The capital is FORTY MILLION THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY ONE THOUSAND TWENTY TWO EUROS (€40,371,022). It is divided into EIGHTY MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY TWO THOUSAND FORTY FOUR (80,742,044) shares, of FIFTY EURO CENTS (€0.50) par value each, of a single class and series. All of the shares are fully subscribed and paid up and give their holders the same rights

Article 6.- Representation of shares

1. The shares are represented by book entries and are constituted as such by virtue of their entry in the corresponding book entry records. They will be governed by the applicable securities market rules. The shares representation regime by book entries will be governed by the Reinstated Text of the Spanish Securities Act, approved by Royal Legislative Decree 4/2015 of 23 October, its implementing regulations and other applicable provisions. The accounting records of the shares will correspond to a central securities depository and its participating entities.
2. Standing to exercise the rights of a shareholder is obtained by registration in the book entry records, which establishes a presumption of lawful ownership and entitles the registered holder to demand that the Company recognise it as a shareholder. Such standing may be demonstrated by showing the appropriate certificates, issued by the entity responsible for maintaining the corresponding book entry records.
3. The Company shall have the right at any moment, to obtain data corresponding to shareholders, including addresses and any means of contact available, from the entities controlling the securities records.

4. If the Company confers any benefit on the one appearing as the owner in accordance with the book entry records, it will be released from the corresponding obligation, even if that person is not the actual owner of the share, provided that it does so in good faith and without gross negligence.
5. If the person appearing as having standing from the entries in the book entry records has said standing by virtue of a fiduciary relationship or another of a comparable nature, the Company may require it to disclose the identity of the actual owners of the shares, as well as the acts of transfer and encumbrance thereof.

Article 7.- Shareholders status. Rights inherent in that status

1. A share gives its lawful owner status as a shareholder, and implies acceptance by its owners of these Articles of Association and the resolutions validly adopted by the governing bodies of the Company, at the same time entitling them to exercise the rights inherent in status as such, in accordance with these Articles of Association and the applicable regulations.
2. In accordance with the terms established in the applicable regulations, and except in the cases contemplated therein, a share gives its owner at least the following rights:
 - a. To participate in distribution of corporate profits and in the proceeds of liquidation.
 - b. Pre-emptive subscription of issues of new shares against cash contributions or bonds convertible to shares.
 - c. To attend and vote at General Meetings on the terms established in these Articles of Association, and challenge corporate resolutions.
 - d. To receive information, on the terms established in the applicable regulations.

Article 8.- Co-ownership, usufruct and pledge of shares

1. Co-ownership and usufruct of shares will be governed by the provisions of the regulations applicable from time to time. The co-owned securities will be recorded in the corresponding accounting records in the name of all owners.

2. Given the fact that the shares are indivisible, the co-owners of shares and those jointly holding other rights therein must designate a single person to exercise the corresponding rights, and give certifiable notice of the identity thereof to the Company.
3. The creation of rights in rem (*derechos reales*) or other kind of encumbrances over the securities represented by book entries shall be recorded in the relevant account. The registration of a pledge is equivalent to the possessory displacement of the title. The creation or the right or encumbrance will be effective against third parties as from the moment in which the relevant registration is made.
4. In case of a pledge of the Company's shares, all economic and political rights inherent to the shares will correspond to the owner of those shares. However, the pledgee shall automatically be entitled to the economic rights inherent to the shares and, if so required by the pledgee, to the political rights of the shares from the moment that the pledgor and the Company are notified through a notarial channel of the existence of an event of execution of the pledge, provided that the judicial execution of the pledge has been admitted for processing or, in the case of execution by a notary, the debtor's summons pursuant to article 1,872 of the Civil Code (*Código Civil*) is reliably accredited.

Article 9.- Scheme for transfer of shares

The shares and economic rights that arise from them, including pre-emptive subscription rights, are freely transferable by all means permitted in law. The transfer of securities represented by book entries will be made by accounting transfer. The registration of the transfer in favour of the acquirer will produce the same effects as the *traditio* of the titles. The transfer will be effective against third parties as from the moment in which the relevant registrations are made.

Article 10.- Uncalled contributions

1. When there are shares that are partially paid up, the shareholder must pay in the manner and within the term determined by the Management Body.

2. The Management Body must resolve payment of uncalled capital within a maximum term of five years from the date of the corresponding resolution to increase capital.

TITLE III.- CORPORATE BODIES.

Article 11.- Corporate bodies

1. The Company's governing bodies are the General Shareholders Meeting and the Management Body, which have the powers respectively assigned to them in the law, these Articles, which may be delegated in the manner and as broadly as determined therein.
2. Authority that has not been attributed to the General Meeting by law or these Articles corresponds to the Management Body.

CHAPTER I.- THE GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING

Article 12.- General Shareholders Meeting

1. The General Meeting, duly called and constituted, will represent all shareholders, and all of them will be subject to its decisions, related to the matters within its authority, including those dissenting and those absent from the meeting, without prejudice to rights of challenge established by law or these Articles.

Without prejudice to more favourable mandatory provisions contemplated by law, those in any event entitled to challenge the resolutions of the General Meeting will include any of the directors, third parties showing a lawful interest and shareholders that have acquired status as such before adoption of the resolution, provided that, individually or collectively, they represent at least one per cent of capital, on the terms established in the applicable regulations.

2. The General Meeting is governed by the provisions of law and the Articles.
3. The General Meeting in any event will have exclusive authority to consider and resolve the matters it is assigned by the Articles and the law.

Article 13.- Kinds of General Meetings

1. General Meetings may be ordinary or extraordinary.

2. The ordinary General Meeting necessarily will meet within the first semester of each financial year, to review the management of the company, approve the annual accounts and resolve regarding application of results, without prejudice to its authority to resolve regarding any other matter appearing on the agenda. The ordinary General Meeting shall be valid even if called or held past the deadline.
3. Any Meeting other than as contemplated in the preceding paragraph will be considered to be an extraordinary General Meeting.

Article 14.- Authority to call General Meeting

4. The General Meetings must be called by the Management Body and, if applicable, by the Company's liquidators.
5. The Management Body may call the General Meeting when it deems it to be appropriate to the corporate interests, and will be required to do so in the following cases:
 - (i) When there is to be an ordinary General Meeting.
 - (ii) When so requested by shareholders representing at least five percent of capital.

Article 15.- Notice of call

1. General Shareholders Meetings will be called by notice published in the manner and with the minimum content provided by law, at least one month prior to the date set for the holding of the meeting, without prejudice to the provisions of section 2 below in this article and those cases in which the law establishes a greater period of advance notice.
2. The notice will state the date of the meeting on first call and all matters that are to be considered. The date, if any, on which the Meeting will be held on second call may also be stated. There will be a period of at least twenty four hours between the first and second meetings.
3. In the case of the ordinary General Meeting and in the other cases established by law, the notice will include an appropriate statement regarding the right to examine the documents that are to be submitted for approval thereof and, if applicable, the legally-

contemplated report or reports, at the registered office, and to obtain them immediately and without charge.

4. If a duly called General Shareholders Meeting is not held on first call and a date for holding it on second call was not specified in the notice, such date will be announced, with the same agenda and with the same publicity requirements as for the first, within fifteen days from the date set for the General Meeting that was not held, giving at least ten days' notice of the date of the meeting.
5. Shareholders representing at least five percent of capital, within the term and on the conditions established by law, may request publication of a supplement to the call of an General Shareholders Meeting, including one or more points on the agenda, provided that the new points are accompanied by an explanation or a proposed resolution that is explained. The Company will publish the supplement to the call on the terms contemplated by law.

Article 16.- Quorum for General Meeting

1. The General Shareholders Meeting, ordinary or extraordinary, will be validly held on first call when shareholders holding at least twenty-five percent of subscribed capital with voting rights are present in person or by proxy, and on second call, whatever the capital in attendance.
2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the preceding paragraph, in order for the ordinary and extraordinary General Meeting to validly approve to increase or reduce the share capital and any other amendment to the Articles of Association, issuing bonds and securities whose competence has not been legally attributed to another body of the Company, the exclusion or limitation of the pre-emptive right to acquire new shares, and the conversion, merger, spin-off or global assignment of assets and liabilities and the transfer of the registered office abroad, it will be necessary shareholders holding at least 50 per cent of the subscribed voting capital must be present in person or by proxy on first call. On second call, the presence of shareholders holding 25 percent of the subscribed voting capital shall be sufficient,

3. The foregoing does not apply to those cases in which the applicable regulations or these Articles of Association specify a different quorum.

Article 17.- Entitlement to attend

1. The holders of 300 or more shares will be entitled to attend the General Meetings, both ordinary and extraordinary meetings. The holders of lower numbers of shares may grant a proxy to another person with the right to attend, or pool together with other shareholders who are in the same situation, until they reach at least that number, appointing a representative from amongst themselves. The group must be formed specifically for each general meeting of shareholders and be recorded in writing.
2. In addition to the provisions of the preceding paragraph, in order to attend the General Meeting it will be required that the shareholder have registered ownership of the shares in the corresponding book entry records, five calendar days in advance of the date the Meeting is to be held, and be in possession of the corresponding attendance card or document that, in accordance with law, evidences the shareholder's status as such, which will indicate the number, class and series of shares owned by the shareholder, as well as the number of votes it can cast.

Article 18.- Representation at the General Meeting

1. Any shareholder entitled to attend may be represented at the General Meeting by any person. Proxies are granted in writing or by electronic means and specifically for each Meeting.
2. The proxy may be granted by remote means of communication, provided that the identity of the person represented is duly guaranteed.
3. To be valid, proxies appointed using the means of distance communication provided for by the Management Body must be received by the Company before 12 midnight on the day before the day of the General Meeting of shareholders on first call. The Management Body may set a shorter period.
4. The documents appointing proxies for the General Meeting of shareholders shall include at least the following information:

- (i) The date of the General Meeting of shareholders and the agenda.
 - (ii) The identity of the person appointing the proxy and of the proxy.
 - (iii) The number of shares held by the person appointing the proxy.
 - (iv) Voting instructions for each item on the agenda.
5. The Chairman of the General Meeting or the persons appointed by him or her shall be deemed to be authorised to determine the validity of any proxy appointments and compliance with the requirements for attendance at the General Meeting of shareholders.
6. The provisions of the preceding sections 3, 4 and 5 of this article will not apply when the proxy is the spouse, an ascendant or descendant of the principal or when the proxy holds a general power of attorney granted by a public document with powers to manage all of the assets held by the principal in Spanish territory.
7. The proxy is always revocable. Personal attendance of the principal at the Meeting has the effect of revocation.

Article 19.- Place and time of holding the Meeting. Adjournment of Meetings.

1. The General Shareholders Meeting will be held at the place indicated in the call within the municipality of the registered office. If the call does not state the place the meeting is to be held, the Meeting will be deemed to have been called to be held at the company's registered office.
2. The General Shareholders Meeting may resolve its own postponement for one or more consecutive days, on proposal of the directors or a number of shareholders representing at least one fourth of the capital attending the meeting. Regardless of the number of sessions, the General Shareholder Meeting will be treated as one sole event, with one set of minutes for all of the sessions.

Article 20.- Right to information

1. From publication of the notice of call of the General Meeting until the seventh calendar day before it is held, the shareholders may request of the directors such

information or clarifications as they deem to be required, or prepare such written questions as they deem to be appropriate, with the scope contemplated by law.

2. Directors are obliged to provide the information in writing until the date of the General Meeting.
3. In addition, during the General Meeting, shareholders of the Company may orally request the informations or clarifications they deem appropriate relating to the items on the agenda. If the shareholder's right cannot be addressed at that moment, directors will be obliged to provide the information in writing within seven days from the General Meeting.
4. The directors are required to provide the information requested by virtue of the preceding paragraphs except where the information is unnecessary to protect shareholders' rights, or there are reasons to believe that the information may be used for extra corporate purposes so that its disclosure may harm the Company or its related parties. The information requested may not be denied when the request is supported by shareholders representing, at least, 25% of the share capital.

Article 21.- Remote voting

1. Shareholders entitled to attend may cast their votes on proposals related to points on the agenda of any kind of General Meeting remotely by mail or such other means of remote communication, if any, as, duly guaranteeing the identity of the shareholder exercising its voting right, may be determined by the Management Body upon calling each General Meeting.
2. A vote cast remotely will only be valid when it is received by the Company before midnight of the day immediately prior to the date set for holding the Meeting on first call. Otherwise, the vote will be deemed not to have been cast.
3. The Management Body may develop the foregoing provisions establishing the rules, measures and procedures adapted to the state of the art to document the casting of votes and granting of proxies by remote means of communication, if applicable adjusting to such rules as may be applicable for that purpose.

4. Personal attendance at the General Meeting by the shareholder or proxy will have the effect of revoking the vote cast by mail or other remote means of communication.

Article 22.- General Meeting Officers

1. The General Meeting Officers will be governed by Law except as otherwise provided in the Articles.
2. The General Meeting will be chaired by the Company's sole director and, if absent, by the person appointed by the majority of shareholders at the General Meeting.
3. The Chairman of the Meeting may be assisted by a Secretary to be appointed by the Meeting Officers.
4. If the presence of a notary has been requested, the notary will be one of the meeting officers of the General Meeting

Article 23.- Manner of deliberating at the General Meeting

1. Once the list of those in attendance has been prepared, the Chairman will declare the General Meeting to be validly convened, if appropriate, specifying whether it can consider all matters on the agenda or, otherwise, the matters in respect of which the General Meeting may deliberate and resolve.
2. The Chairman will submit the matters on the agenda for deliberation as they appear thereon.
3. Any person entitled to attend may speak at least once regarding each of the points on the agenda, although the Chairman of the General Meeting may establish the order of speakers and at any time set the maximum time allowed to each of them.

Article 24.- Adoption of resolutions

1. Each item on the agenda will be voted on separately, with the vote being public, not by secret ballot. In addition, the matters included in a single point of the agenda that are substantially independent of each other also will be submitted to separate voting.
2. Once the Chairman considers a matter to be sufficiently debated, he will submit it to vote. In addition, the chairman of the Meeting will be responsible for organising the

manner of conducting voting. For that purpose the chairman may be assisted by two or more scrutineers, freely appointed by the Chairman, if applicable.

3. Resolutions of the Meeting will be adopted by simple majority of capital of the votes of the shareholders present or by proxy in the General Meeting, being understood to be adopted when more votes are obtained in favour than against of the share capital present or by proxy.
4. Nevertheless, the agreements referred to in article 16.2 shall be adopted by absolute majority if the share capital present or by proxy is over fifty percent. However, favourable vote of two-thirds majority of the present or by proxy share capital at the General Meeting shall be required when, at second call, twenty-five percent but less than fifty percent of the subscribed share capital with voting rights is in attendance.

The foregoing does not apply to cases in which the applicable regulation or these Articles of Association specify a higher majority.

5. Once a matter has been submitted to vote, the Chairman will declare the result, if applicable stating that the resolution has been validly adopted.
6. The minimum information to be determined for each item submitted to a vote in the General Meeting shall include the number of shares for which valid votes were cast, the proportion of the share capital represented thereby, the total number of valid votes, the number of votes in favour and against each proposal and, as appropriate, the number of abstentions and/or blank votes.

Article 25.- Minutes of Meeting

1. The minutes of the General Meeting may be approved by the General Meeting itself after it has been held, and signed by the Chairman and Secretary and, failing this, within a period of fifteen days, by the Chairman and two scrutineers, one representing the majority and the other representing the minority. The minutes approved in either of these ways will be enforceable from the date on which they are approved.

2. Certifications of the minutes will be issued by the sole director and the resolutions will be attested as public documents by those authorised to do so, as determined in these Articles and the Commercial Registry Regulations.
3. The Management Body may request the presence of a notary to prepare the minutes of the meeting, and will be required to do so if so requested by shareholders representing at least one percent of capital, five calendar days in advance of the date scheduled for the meeting. In both cases, the notary minutes will be deemed to be minutes of the Meeting.

CHAPTER II.- MANAGEMENT BODY

Article 26.- Sole director. Powers

- 1 The Company shall be governed by a sole director.
- 2 The Management Body has authority regarding such matters as are not attributed by law or the Articles of Association to the General Meeting or another corporate body. It in no case may delegate such authority as is deemed to be nondelegable by law.

Article 27.- Term of office

The sole director will hold that position for a term of six years and may be re-elected one or more times for periods of the same duration.

Article 28.- Compensation of the position

The position of director shall be not remunerated.

Article 29.- Company action for liability. Standing of minority

Shareholders holding shares representing at least five percent of capital will be entitled to:

- (i) request call of the general meeting to decide regarding exercise of the corporate action for liability against directors;
- (ii) bring the corporate action for liability against directors in the defence of the interests of the company when the Management Body does not call the General Meeting requested for that purpose, when the Company within the term of one month after the

date of adoption of the corresponding resolution does not bring the action, or when the decision of the general meeting is to not bring the action for liability; and

- (iii) oppose the adoption by the General Meeting of a resolution settling or waiving exercise of the corporate action for liability against directors.

Article 30.- Powers of representation

1. Authority to represent the Company, judicially and otherwise, will correspond to the sole director.
2. The sole director is responsible for arranging for attestation of the resolutions adopted by the corporate bodies as public documents.
3. Attestation of corporate resolutions as public documents by any other person will require the granting of the relevant deed of powers of attorney, which may be general for all kind of resolutions, in which case it shall be registered with the Commercial Registry. This procedure will not be applicable to attest corporate resolutions as public documents if the minutes or notarial testimony thereof are taken as reference.

TITLE IV.- ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Article 31.- Preparation and verification of the annual accounts

1. The financial year will begin on 1 January and end on 31 December of each year.
2. Within three months from the end of the financial year, the Management Body, in accordance with the structure, principles and guidelines contained in the applicable regulations, will prepare and sign the annual accounts, the management report and the proposal for application of results and, if applicable, the consolidated annual accounts and management report.
3. The annual accounts and the management report will be reviewed by the statutory auditors on the terms provided by law.

Article 32.- Approval of annual accounts and application of results

1. The annual accounts of the Company will be submitted to the ordinary General Shareholders Meeting for approval.

2. Once the annual accounts have been approved, the General Meeting will resolve regarding allocation of results for the financial year.
3. The General Shareholders Meeting may resolve that the dividend will be paid in kind, in whole or in part, provided that the assets or securities to be distributed are homogeneous, are admitted to trading on an official market at the time of effectiveness of the resolution (or it is duly guaranteed by the Company that liquidity will be obtained within a maximum term of one year), and are not distributed for a value less than the value on the balance sheet of the Company. The foregoing also will apply to distribution of issue premium and reduction of capital by way of return of contributions.

Article 33.- Deposit of approved annual accounts

Within the month after approval of the annual accounts, the directors will present, for filing with the Commercial Registry of the registered office, certification of the resolutions of the general meeting approving the annual accounts and allocating results, attaching a copy of each of those accounts and, if applicable, copies of the management report and auditors' report.

TITLE V.- WINDING UP AND LIQUIDATION OF THE COMPANY

Article 34.- Winding up of the company

The Company will be wound up:

- (i) By resolution by the General Shareholders Meeting called expressly for this purpose, adopted in accordance with these Articles of Association; and
- (ii) In any of the other cases contemplated in applicable regulations.

Article 35.- Liquidation

1. The Company having been wound up, the liquidation period will open, except in the event of a merger or split-up or any other case of assignment of all of the assets and liabilities.

2. The same General Shareholders Meeting that agrees to dissolve the Company will determine the terms of liquidation, which must be conducted by an odd number of liquidators appointed for this purpose by the General Shareholders Meeting.
3. From the time the Company is declared to be in liquidation, the representative powers of the management body to enter into new agreements and contract new obligations will cease, and the liquidators will assume the duties given thereto by applicable law.
4. For the conduct of the liquidation, division of the company's assets and cancellation of registration, the provisions of applicable regulations will apply.
5. The General Shareholders Meeting during the liquidation period will retain the same authority as during the normal life of the Company. In particular it will have the authority to approve liquidation accounts and the final liquidation balance sheet.
6. Regarding the assets and liabilities remaining after the liquidation of the Company, as for the legal acts to be formalized after the entries regarding the Company have been cancelled, law provisions will be applicable.



Annex II. Comparative document of the Articles of Association

**ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF PARQUES REUNIDOS SERVICIOS
CENTRALES, S.A.**

~~21 March 2018~~

29 October 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | |
|--|-----------------|
| TITLE I.- GENERAL PROVISIONS | 54 |
| Article 1.- Corporate name | 54 |
| Article 2.- Corporate purpose | 54 |
| Article 3.- Registered office and corporate website | 65 |
| Article 4.- Term of Company, commencement of operations and financial year | 76 |
| TITLE II.- CAPITAL, SHARES AND RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF SHARES | 76 |
| Article 5.- Shares and capital | 76 |
| Article 6.- Representation of shares | 76 |
| Article 7.- Shareholders status. Rights inherent in that status | 87 |
| Article 8.- Co-ownership, usufruct and pledge of shares | 87 |
| Article 9.- Scheme for transfer of shares | 98 |
| Article 10.- Uncalled contributions | 98 |
| TITLE III.- CORPORATE BODIES. | 9 |
| Article 11.- Corporate bodies | 9 |
| CHAPTER I.- THE GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING | 109 |
| Article 12.- General Shareholders Meeting | 109 |
| Article 13.- Kinds of General Meetings | 109 |
| Article 14.- Authority to call General Meeting | 110 |
| Article 15.- Notice of call | 110 |
| Article 16.- Quorum for General Meeting | 1211 |
| Article 17.- Equal treatment | 13 |
| Article 18.- Entitlement to attend | 1312 |

| | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--|-----------------|-------|
| Article 19 . <u>18</u> .- | Representation | at | th |
| | <u>14</u> <u>12</u> | | |
| Article 20 . <u>19</u> .- | Place and time of holding the Meeting. | Adjournment | of l |
| | <u>15</u> <u>13</u> | | |
| Article 21 . <u>20</u> .- | | Right | |
| | <u>15</u> <u>13</u> | | |
| Article 22 . <u>21</u> .- | | Remote voting | |
| | <u>16</u> <u>14</u> | | |
| Article 23 . <u>22</u> .- | | General | |
| | <u>16</u> <u>15</u> | | |
| Article 24 . <u>23</u> .- | Manner | of deliberating | at th |
| | <u>17</u> <u>15</u> | | |
| Article 25 . <u>24</u> .- | | Adoption | |
| | <u>17</u> <u>15</u> | | |
| Article 26 . <u>25</u> .- | | Minutes | |
| | <u>18</u> <u>16</u> | | |

CHAPTER II.- MANAGEMENT BODY 1917

Article 26.- Sole director. Powers 17

Article 27.- ~~Board of Directors. Powers 19~~

~~Article 28.— Composition of the management body 19~~

~~Article 29.— Term of office 2017~~

Article ~~30~~.28.- Compensation 2017

Article ~~31~~.29.- Company action for liability. Stan 2217

Article ~~32~~.— ~~Appointment to positions on the Board of Directors 2330.-~~
Powers of representation 18

| | |
|---|--------------------|
| Article 33.— Call of Board of Directors | 24 |
| Article 34.— Board of Directors quorum | 25 |
| Article 35.— Manner of deliberation and adoption of resolutions of the Board of Directors | 26 |
| Article 36.— Board of Directors minutes | 26 |
| Article 37.— Powers of representation | 26 |
| Article 38.— Delegation of authority | 27 |
| Article 39.— Audit and Control Committee. Composition, authority and functioning | 28 |
| Article 40.— Appointments and Remuneration Committee. Composition, authority and functioning | 32 |
| TITLE IV.- ANNUAL ACCOUNTS | <u>3418</u> |
| Article 41. <u>31.</u> - Preparation and verification of the | <u>3418</u> |
| Article 42. <u>32.</u> - Approval of annual accounts and applicati | <u>3418</u> |
| Article 43. <u>33.</u> - Deposit of approv | <u>3519</u> |
| TITLE V.- WINDING UP AND LIQUIDATION OF THE COMPANY | <u>3519</u> |
| Article 44. <u>34.</u> - Winding up | <u>3519</u> |
| Article 45. <u>35.</u> - Liquidation | <u>3519</u> |
| Article 46.— Transitional provision | 36 |

**ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF PARQUES REUNIDOS SERVICIOS
CENTRALES, S.A.**

TITLE I.- GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1.- Corporate name

The company is named Parques Reunidos Servicios Centrales, S.A. (hereinafter the "**Company**") and is governed by these Articles and, by way of supplement, by the rules in the Recast Text of the Spanish Companies Law, approved by Royal Legislative Decree 1/2010 of 2 July 2010 (the "**Spanish Companies Law**").

Article 2.- Corporate purpose

The purpose of the Company is:

1. the promotion, development, construction, installation and exploitation of all kinds of leisure and entertainment businesses and activities, of real estate properties owned or leased, or by means of surface rights, administrative concession and any other form of transfer of right to use.
2. to render services of management, administration and/or strategic business consulting regarding the development, strategic growth and investment plans to companies in which the Company holds, directly or indirectly, a shareholding.
3. the advice to companies in which the Company holds (directly or indirectly) a shareholding, referring such advice to potential investments or acquisitions in the domestic and/or international market in the management and exploitation of amusement parks, sports facilities and leisure and entertainment of any kind or any other sector of corresponding to a related activity, precedent, consequential or otherwise related to the previous sector.
4. the ownership, management, acquisition and sale of securities and shares in companies, in accordance, in all cases, to the provisions of the Securities Market legislation.

5. to render services of advice or consulting regarding the preliminary stage, the management, development and/or commercial exploitation of leisure and entertainment businesses and activities.

The activities comprising the corporate purpose may be undertaken both in Spain and abroad, either directly by the Company or indirectly, in whole or in part, through the ownership of shares or interest in companies with identical or analogous corporate purpose. The interest will comprise the subscription, purchase or acquisition by any means valid by law, of mercantile values or titles which grant an interest in the share capital or profits of such companies, as any modality of association between companies.

They are excluded from the Company's purpose those activities whose exercise require by law any kind of special requirements which are not complied with by the Company.

Article 3.- Registered office and corporate website

1. The Company will have its registered address at Paseo de la Castellana, 216, 28046, Madrid, España.
2. The management body may change the registered office within the national territory (by amending this article in order to include herein the new registered office), as well as establish, close or transfer commercial, administrative or warehousing facilities, factories, agencies, representations, offices or branches, anywhere in Spanish territory and abroad.
3. The Company will have a corporate website on the terms established in the Spanish Companies Law, which will be registered in the Commercial Registry. The documents containing information required by law, these Articles of Association and any other internal rules will be published on the aforesaid corporate website, as will all information deemed appropriate to be made available to the shareholders and investors in this way.
4. Amendment, transfer and/or elimination of the Company's corporate website will be within the authority of the ~~Board of Directors~~Management Body, without prejudice to the permanent delegation of powers that the ~~Board of Directors may grant, if deemed~~

~~appropriate, in favour of one or more chief executive directors~~ Management Body may grant.

Article 4.- Term of Company, commencement of operations and financial year

1. The Company will have an indefinite term.
2. The Company commenced operations on the date of execution of the deed of establishment, i.e., 23 November 2006.
3. The financial year will commence on 1 January and end on 31 December of each year.

TITLE II.- CAPITAL, SHARES AND RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF SHARES

Article 5.- Shares and capital

The capital is FORTY MILLION THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY ONE THOUSAND TWENTY TWO EUROS (€40,371,022). It is divided into EIGHTY MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY TWO THOUSAND FORTY FOUR (80,742,044) shares, of FIFTY EURO CENTS (€0.50) par value each, of a single class and series. All of the shares are fully subscribed and paid up and give their holders the same rights

Article 6.- Representation of shares

1. The shares are represented by book entries and are constituted as such by virtue of their entry in the corresponding book entry records. They will be governed by the applicable securities market rules. The shares representation regime by book entries will be governed by the Reinstated Text of the Spanish Securities Act, approved by Royal Legislative Decree 4/2015 of 23 October, its implementing regulations and other applicable provisions. The accounting records of the shares will correspond to a central securities depository and its participating entities.
2. Standing to exercise the rights of a shareholder is obtained by registration in the book entry records, which establishes a presumption of lawful ownership and entitles the registered holder to demand that the Company recognise it as a shareholder. Such standing may be demonstrated by showing the appropriate certificates, issued by the entity responsible for maintaining the corresponding book entry records.

3. The Company shall have the right at any moment, to obtain data corresponding to shareholders, including addresses and any means of contact available, from the entities controlling the securities records.
4. If the Company confers any benefit on the one appearing as the owner in accordance with the book entry records, it will be released from the corresponding obligation, even if that person is not the actual owner of the share, provided that it does so in good faith and without gross negligence.
5. If the person appearing as having standing from the entries in the book entry records has said standing by virtue of a fiduciary relationship or another of a comparable nature, the Company may require it to disclose the identity of the actual owners of the shares, as well as the acts of transfer and encumbrance thereof.

Article 7.- Shareholders status. Rights inherent in that status

1. A share gives its lawful owner status as a shareholder, and implies acceptance by its owners of these Articles of Association and the resolutions validly adopted by the governing bodies of the Company, at the same time entitling them to exercise the rights inherent in status as such, in accordance with these Articles of Association and the applicable regulations.
2. In accordance with the terms established in the applicable regulations, and except in the cases contemplated therein, a share gives its owner at least the following rights:
 - a. To participate in distribution of corporate profits and in the proceeds of liquidation.
 - b. Pre-emptive subscription of issues of new shares against cash contributions or bonds convertible to shares.
 - c. To attend and vote at General Meetings on the terms established in these Articles of Association, and challenge corporate resolutions.
 - d. To receive information, on the terms established in the applicable regulations.

Article 8.- Co-ownership, usufruct and pledge of shares

1. Co-ownership, ~~and~~ usufruct ~~and pledge~~ of shares will be governed by the provisions of the regulations applicable from time to time. The co-owned securities will be recorded in the corresponding accounting records in the name of all owners.
2. Given the fact that the shares are indivisible, the co-owners of shares and those jointly holding other rights therein must designate a single person to exercise the corresponding rights, and give certifiable notice of the identity thereof to the Company.
3. The creation of rights in rem (*derechos reales*) or other kind of encumbrances over the securities represented by book entries shall be recorded in the relevant account. The registration of a pledge is equivalent to the possessory displacement of the title. The creation or the right or encumbrance will be effective against third parties as from the moment in which the relevant registration is made.
4. In case of a pledge of the Company's shares, all economic and political rights inherent to the shares will correspond to the owner of those shares. However, the pledgee shall automatically be entitled to the economic rights inherent to the shares and, if so required by the pledgee, to the political rights of the shares from the moment that the pledgor and the Company are notified through a notarial channel of the existence of an event of execution of the pledge, provided that the judicial execution of the pledge has been admitted for processing or, in the case of execution by a notary, the debtor's summons pursuant to article 1,872 of the Civil Code (*Código Civil*) is reliably accredited.

Article 9.- Scheme for transfer of shares

The shares and economic rights that arise from them, including pre-emptive subscription rights, are freely transferable by all means permitted in law. The transfer of securities represented by book entries will be made by accounting transfer. The registration of the transfer in favour of the acquirer will produce the same effects as the *traditio* of the titles. The transfer will be effective against third parties as from the moment in which the relevant registrations are made.

Article 10.- Uncalled contributions

1. When there are shares that are partially paid up, the shareholder must pay in the manner and within the term determined by the ~~Board of Directors~~Management Body.
2. The ~~Board of Directors~~Management Body must resolve payment of uncalled capital within a maximum term of five years from the date of the corresponding resolution to increase capital.

TITLE III.- CORPORATE BODIES.

Article 11.- Corporate bodies

1. The Company's governing bodies are the General Shareholders Meeting and the ~~Board of Directors~~Management Body, which have the powers respectively assigned to them in the law, these Articles, which may be delegated in the manner and as broadly as determined therein.
2. Authority that has not been attributed to the General Meeting by law or these Articles corresponds to the ~~Board of Directors~~.~~3. — The legal and articles regulation of the aforesaid bodies will be developed and completed, respectively, by way of the General Meeting Regulations and the Board of Directors Regulations, which will be approved by the majority of the votes that in each case shall correspond, at a meeting of each of those bodies, constituted in accordance with the provisions of the law and the Articles of Association and which will be made public as provided by law~~Management Body.

CHAPTER I.- THE GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING

Article 12.- General Shareholders Meeting

1. The General Meeting, duly called and constituted, will represent all shareholders, and all of them will be subject to its decisions, related to the matters within its authority, including those dissenting and those absent from the meeting, without prejudice to rights of challenge established by law or these Articles.

Without prejudice to more favourable mandatory provisions contemplated by law, those in any event entitled to challenge the resolutions of the General Meeting will include any of the directors, third parties showing a lawful interest and shareholders

that have acquired status as such before adoption of the resolution, provided that, individually or collectively, they represent at least one per ~~mil~~cent of capital, on the terms established in the applicable regulations.

2. The General Meeting is governed by the provisions of law, ~~the Articles and the General Meeting Regulations, which complete and develop the legal and Articles regulation as regards call, preparation and conduct of the meeting and the procedure therefor, and exercise of information, attendance, proxy and voting rights of the shareholders. The General Meeting Regulations must be approved by it~~ and the Articles.
3. The General Meeting in any event will have exclusive authority to consider and resolve the matters it is assigned by the Articles, ~~the General Meeting Regulations~~ and the law.

Article 13.- Kinds of General Meetings

1. General Meetings may be ordinary or extraordinary.
2. The ordinary General Meeting necessarily will meet within the first semester of each financial year, to review the management of the company, approve the annual accounts and resolve regarding application of results, without prejudice to its authority to resolve regarding any other matter appearing on the agenda. The ordinary General Meeting shall be valid even if called or held past the deadline.
3. Any Meeting other than as contemplated in the preceding paragraph will be considered to be an extraordinary General Meeting.

Article 14.- Authority to call General Meeting

4. The General Meetings must be called by the ~~Board of Directors~~Management Body and, if applicable, by the Company's liquidators.
5. The ~~Board of Directors~~Management Body may call the General Meeting when it deems it to be appropriate to the corporate interests, and will be required to do so in the following cases:
 - (i) When there is to be an ordinary General Meeting.

- (ii) When so requested by shareholders representing at least ~~three~~five percent of capital.

Article 15.- Notice of call

1. General Shareholders Meetings will be called by notice published in the manner and with the minimum content provided by law, at least one month prior to the date set for the holding of the meeting, without prejudice to the provisions of section 2 below in this article and those cases in which the law establishes a greater period of advance notice.
- ~~2. When the Company offers its shareholders the effective possibility of voting by electronic means accessible to all of them, the extraordinary General Meetings of the Company may be called a minimum of fifteen days in advance, after a resolution adopted at an ordinary General Meeting on the terms for that purpose applicable in accordance with the applicable regulations of the Company.~~
2. ~~3.~~ The notice will state the date of the meeting on first call and all matters that are to be considered, ~~and such others, if any, as must be included under the provisions of the General Meeting Regulations.~~ The date, if any, on which the Meeting will be held on second call may also be stated. There will be a period of at least twenty four hours between the first and second meetings. ~~From the moment of publication of the call and until the General Meeting is held, the Company shall make public at least the information provided by law from time to time, uninterrupted, on its website.~~
3. ~~4.~~ In the case of the ordinary General Meeting and in the other cases established by law, the notice will include an appropriate statement regarding the right to examine the documents that are to be submitted for approval thereof and, if applicable, the legally-contemplated report or reports, at the registered office, and to obtain them immediately and without charge.
4. ~~5.~~ If a duly called General Shareholders Meeting is not held on first call and a date for holding it on second call was not specified in the notice, such date will be announced, with the same agenda and with the same publicity requirements as for the first, within

fifteen days from the date set for the General Meeting that was not held, giving at least ten days' notice of the date of the meeting.

5. ~~6.~~ Shareholders representing at least ~~three~~five percent of capital, within the term and on the conditions established by law, may request publication of a supplement to the call of an ~~ordinary~~ General Shareholders Meeting, including one or more points on the agenda, provided that the new points are accompanied by an explanation or a proposed resolution that is explained, ~~and may present supported proposed resolutions on matters already included or that are to be included on the agenda of a General Shareholders Meeting that has already been called.~~ The Company will publish the supplement to the call ~~and the aforesaid supported proposed resolutions~~ on the terms contemplated by law.

Article 16.- Quorum for General Meeting

1. The General Shareholders Meeting, ordinary or extraordinary, will be validly held on first call when shareholders holding at least twenty-five percent of subscribed capital with voting rights are present in person or by proxy, and on second call, whatever the capital in attendance.
2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the preceding paragraph, in order for the ordinary and extraordinary General Meeting to validly approve to increase or reduce the share capital and any other amendment to the Articles of Association, issuing bonds and securities whose competence has not been legally attributed to another body of the Company, the exclusion or limitation of the pre-emptive right to acquire new shares, and the conversion, merger, spin-off or global assignment of assets and liabilities and the transfer of the registered office abroad, it will be necessary shareholders holding at least 50 per cent of the subscribed voting capital must be present in person or by proxy on first call. On second call, the presence of shareholders holding 25 percent of the subscribed voting capital shall be sufficient,
3. The foregoing does not apply to those cases in which the applicable regulations or these Articles of Association specify a different quorum.

~~Article 17.-~~ **Equal treatment**

~~The Company at all times will ensure equal treatment of all shareholders in the same position as regards information, participation and exercise of voting rights at the General Meeting.~~

Article 17.- ~~Article 18.-~~ **Entitlement to attend**

1. The holders of 300 or more shares will be entitled to attend the General Meetings, both ordinary and extraordinary meetings. The holders of lower numbers of shares may grant a proxy to another person with the right to attend, or pool together with other shareholders who are in the same situation, until they reach at least that number, appointing a representative from amongst themselves. The group must be formed specifically for each general meeting of shareholders and be recorded in writing.
2. In addition to the provisions of the preceding paragraph, in order to attend the General Meeting it will be required that the shareholder have registered ownership of the shares in the corresponding book entry records, five calendar days in advance of the date the Meeting is to be held, and be in possession of the corresponding attendance card or document that, in accordance with law, evidences the shareholder's status as such, which will indicate the number, class and series of shares owned by the shareholder, as well as the number of votes it can cast.

Article 18.- ~~Article 19.-~~ **Representation at the General Meeting**

1. Any shareholder entitled to attend may be represented at the General Meeting by any person. Proxies are granted in writing or by electronic means and specifically for each Meeting.
2. The proxy may be granted by remote means of communication, provided that the identity of the person represented is duly guaranteed. ~~The conditions for granting proxies by such means of communication will be determined in the General Meeting Regulations.~~
3. To be valid, proxies appointed using the means of distance communication provided for by the ~~Board of Directors~~ Management Body must be received by the Company

before 12 midnight on the day before the day of the General Meeting of shareholders on first call. The ~~Board of Directors~~Management Body may set a shorter period.

4. The documents appointing proxies for the General Meeting of shareholders shall include at least the following information:
 - (i) The date of the General Meeting of shareholders and the agenda.
 - (ii) The identity of the person appointing the proxy and of the proxy.
 - (iii) The number of shares held by the person appointing the proxy.
 - (iv) Voting instructions for each item on the agenda.
5. The Chairman of the General Meeting or the persons appointed by him or her shall be deemed to be authorised to determine the validity of any proxy appointments and compliance with the requirements for attendance at the General Meeting of shareholders.
6. The provisions of the preceding sections 3, 4 and 5 of this article will not apply when the proxy is the spouse, an ascendant or descendant of the principal or when the proxy holds a general power of attorney granted by a public document with powers to manage all of the assets held by the principal in Spanish territory.
7. The proxy is always revocable. Personal attendance of the principal at the Meeting has the effect of revocation.

Article 19.- ~~Article 20.-~~ Place and time of holding the Meeting. Adjournment of Meetings.

1. The General Shareholders Meeting will be held at the place indicated in the call within the municipality of the registered office. If the call does not state the place the meeting is to be held, the Meeting will be deemed to have been called to be held at the company's registered office.
2. The General Shareholders Meeting may resolve its own postponement for one or more consecutive days, on proposal of the directors or a number of shareholders representing at least one fourth of the capital attending the meeting. Regardless of the

number of sessions, the General Shareholder Meeting will be treated as one sole event, with one set of minutes for all of the sessions.

~~3. The General Shareholders Meeting also may be suspended temporarily, in the cases and in the manner contemplated in its Regulations.~~

Article 20.- ~~Article 21.-~~ Right to information

1. From publication of the notice of call of the General Meeting until the ~~fifth~~seventh calendar day before it is held, the shareholders may request of the directors such information or clarifications as they deem to be required, or prepare such written questions as they deem to be appropriate, with the scope contemplated by law.
2. Directors are obliged to provide the information in writing until the date of the General Meeting.
3. ~~2.~~ In addition, during the General Meeting, shareholders of the Company may orally request the ~~directors, in written and within the same period or verbally during the General Meeting, the~~informations or clarifications they deem appropriate ~~regarding the publicly accessible information that the Company has filed with the National Securities Market Commission (Comisión Nacional del Mercado de Valores) since the date in which the latest~~relating to the items on the agenda. If the shareholder's right cannot be addressed at that moment, directors will be obliged to provide the information in writing within seven days from the General Meeting ~~had been held and on the report of the auditor.~~
4. ~~3.~~ The directors are required to provide the information requested ~~in the form and within the terms provided by law. Valid requests for information, clarifications or written questions and the answers provided in writing by the directors shall be included on the Company's website. In the event that, prior to the formulation of a specific question, the requested information is available in a clear, explicit and direct manner for all shareholders to access on the website, in a question-response format, the directors may limit their response to a reference to the information made available in said format.~~by virtue of the preceding paragraphs except where the information is unnecessary to protect shareholders' rights, or there are reasons to believe that the

information may be used for extra corporate purposes o that its disclosure may harm the Company or its related parties. The information requested may not be denied when the request is supported by shareholders representing, at least, 25% of the share capital.

Article 21.- ~~Article 22.-~~ Remote voting

1. Shareholders entitled to attend may cast their votes on proposals related to points on the agenda of any kind of General Meeting remotely by mail or such other means of remote communication, if any, as, duly guaranteeing the identity of the shareholder exercising its voting right, may be determined by the ~~Board of Directors~~Management Body upon calling each General Meeting,~~as provided in the General Meeting Regulations.~~
2. A vote cast remotely will only be valid when it is received by the Company before midnight of the day immediately prior to the date set for holding the Meeting on first call. Otherwise, the vote will be deemed not to have been cast.
3. The ~~Board of Directors, in accordance with the provisions of the General Meeting Regulations,~~Management Body may develop the foregoing provisions establishing the rules, measures and procedures adapted to the state of the art to document the casting of votes and granting of proxies by remote means of communication, if applicable adjusting to such rules as may be applicable for that purpose. ~~The implementing rules adopted under the provisions of this section will be published on the Company's corporate website.~~
4. Personal attendance at the General Meeting by the shareholder or proxy will have the effect of revoking the vote cast by mail or other remote means of communication.

Article 22.- ~~Article 23.-~~ General Meeting Officers

1. The General Meeting ~~will be chaired by the Chairman of the Board of Directors or, if not attending in person, by its Vice Chairman. If there is more than one Vice Chairman, number priority will determine the order in which the Vice Chairmen will replace the Chairman.~~Officers will be governed by Law except as otherwise provided in the Articles.

2. ~~If none of the persons indicated in the preceding section is in attendance, the Chairman of the~~The General Meeting will be ~~the longest-serving director and, if there is more than one having such seniority, the eldest. In the absence of all of the foregoing, the person designated by the Meeting Officers will chair~~chaired by the Company's sole director and, if absent, by the person appointed by the majority of shareholders at the General~~Shareholders~~ Meeting.
3. The Chairman of the Meeting ~~will~~may be assisted by ~~the Secretary. The Secretary of the Board of Directors will be the Secretary of the General Meeting or, if not personally in attendance, the Assistant Secretary and, in the absence thereof, the longest-serving director and, if there is more than one having such seniority, the eldest. In the absence of all of the foregoing, the person designated by the Meeting Officers will act as secretary of the General Shareholders Meeting~~a Secretary to be appointed by the Meeting Officers.
4. If the presence of a notary has been requested, the notary will be one of the meeting officers of the General Meeting

Article 23.- ~~Article 24.-~~ **Manner of deliberating at the General Meeting**

1. Once the list of those in attendance has been prepared, the Chairman will declare the General Meeting to be validly convened, if appropriate, specifying whether it can consider all matters on the agenda or, otherwise, the matters in respect of which the General Meeting may deliberate and resolve.
2. The Chairman will submit the matters on the agenda for deliberation as they appear thereon.
3. Any person entitled to attend may speak at least once regarding each of the points on the agenda, although the Chairman of the General Meeting may establish the order of speakers and at any time set the maximum time allowed to each of them.

Article 24.- ~~Article 25.-~~ Adoption of resolutions

1. Each item on the agenda will be voted on separately, with the vote being public, not by secret ballot. In addition, the matters included in a single point of the agenda that are substantially independent of each other also will be submitted to separate voting.
2. Once the Chairman considers a matter to be sufficiently debated, he will submit it to vote. In addition, the chairman of the Meeting will be responsible for organising the manner of conducting voting. For that purpose the chairman may be assisted by two or more scrutineers, freely appointed by the ~~chairman~~Chairman, if applicable ~~in accordance with the implementing rules set forth in the General Meeting Regulations.~~
3. Resolutions of the Meeting will be adopted by simple majority of capital of the votes of the shareholders present or by proxy in the General Meeting, being understood to be adopted when more votes are obtained in favour than against of the share capital present or by proxy.
4. Nevertheless, the agreements referred to in article 16.2 shall be adopted by absolute majority if the share capital present or by proxy is over fifty percent. However, favourable vote of two-thirds majority of the present or by proxy share capital at the General Meeting shall be required when, at second call, twenty-five percent but less than fifty percent of the subscribed share capital with voting rights is in attendance.

The foregoing does not apply to cases in which the applicable regulation or these Articles of Association specify a higher majority.
5. Once a matter has been submitted to vote, the Chairman will declare the result, if applicable stating that the resolution has been validly adopted.
6. The minimum information to be determined for each item submitted to a vote in the General Meeting shall include the number of shares for which valid votes were cast, the proportion of the share capital represented thereby, the total number of valid votes, the number of votes in favour and against each proposal and, as appropriate, the number of abstentions and/or blank votes. ~~The resolutions adopted and the result of the votes shall be published in full on the Company's website within five days of the date of the General Meeting.~~

Article 25.- ~~Article 26.-~~ Minutes of Meeting

1. The minutes of the General Meeting may be approved by the General Meeting itself after it has been held, and signed by the Chairman and Secretary and, failing this, within a period of fifteen days, by the Chairman and two scrutineers, one representing the majority and the other representing the minority. The minutes approved in either of these ways will be enforceable from the date on which they are approved.
2. Certifications of the minutes will be issued by the ~~Secretary or the Assistant Secretary of the Board of Directors with the approval of the Chairman or the Vice-Chairman, as the case may be,~~ sole director and the resolutions will be attested as public documents by those authorised to do so, as determined in these Articles and the Commercial Registry Regulations.
3. The ~~Board of Directors~~ Management Body may request the presence of a notary to prepare the minutes of the meeting, and will be required to do so if so requested by shareholders representing at least one percent of capital, five calendar days in advance of the date scheduled for the meeting. In both cases, the notary minutes will be deemed to be minutes of the Meeting.

CHAPTER II.- MANAGEMENT BODY

Article 26.- ~~Article 27.-~~ ~~Board of Directors~~ Sole director. Powers

- 1 The Company shall be governed by a ~~Board of Directors~~ sole director.
- 2 The ~~Board of Directors~~ Management Body has authority regarding such matters as are not attributed by law or the Articles of Association to the General Meeting or another corporate body. It in no case may delegate such authority as is deemed to be nondelegable by law.
- ~~3—The Board of Directors has the broadest power and authority to manage, direct, and represent the Company. It may entrust ordinary management of the Company to the board committees and, in that case, will focus its actions on the general function of supervision and on consideration of those matters that are of particular importance to the Company.~~

~~Article 28. — **Composition of the management body**~~

- ~~1. — The Company will be governed by a Board of Directors, comprised of a minimum of five and a maximum of fifteen members.~~
- ~~2. — The General Meeting determines the number of members of the Board. For this purpose it may fix that number by express resolution, or indirectly by filling vacancies or appointing new directors, within the maximum established in the preceding section.~~
- ~~3. — The Board of Directors will be governed by the applicable legal rules and by these Articles. The Board of Directors will develop and complete these provisions through the appropriate Board of Directors Regulations, will advise the General Meeting of approval thereof and will make it public as provided by law.~~
- ~~4. — The Board of Directors, in the exercise of its powers to propose directors to the General Shareholders' Meeting and to co-opt directors to fill vacancies, must ensure that, as far as possible, on the composition of the body, proprietary and independent directors represent a majority of the Board of Directors, attempting that the number of independent directors represent at least one third of the members of the Board of Directors. In addition, it shall be attempted that the number of executive directors is the minimum necessary, taking into account the complexity of the corporate group and the ownership interests of the executive directors in the capital of the Company.~~
- ~~5. — The definitions of the various kinds of directors will be as established in current regulations. The Board Regulations may establish additional circumstances in which a director cannot be considered to be independent.~~
- ~~6. — The category of each director must be explained by the Board of Directors to the General Shareholders Meeting that is to make or ratify its appointment. If there is any external director that cannot be considered to be proprietary or independent, the Company will explain that circumstance and the links this person has with the Company or its executives, or with its shareholders.~~

Article 27.- ~~Article 29.-~~ Term of office

The ~~members of the Board of Directors~~sole director will hold ~~their positions~~that position for a term of ~~four~~six years and may be re-elected one or more times for periods of the same duration.

Article 28.- ~~Article 30.-~~ Compensation of the position

~~1.— The directors will receive compensation for performance of their duties by virtue of membership on the Board of Directors as the collegial decision-making body of the Company, as well as on the committees they belong to.~~position of director shall be not remunerated.

~~2.— The compensation of the directors in their capacity as such referred to in the preceding section will have three components: (a) a fixed annual amount, (b) per diems for attendance, and (c) a remuneration in shares or linked to its evolution, without prejudice to the Board of Directors Regulations.~~

~~3.— The total amount of the compensation the Company may pay to its group of Directors in the categories contemplated in the preceding paragraph may not exceed the amount determined for that purpose by the General Shareholders Meeting. The amount so fixed by the Meeting will be maintained until modified by a new resolution of the General Shareholders Meeting, in accordance with the provisions of applicable legislation.~~

~~The specific determination of the corresponding amount in the aforesaid categories for each of the directors will be made by the Board of Directors in accordance with the director compensation policy, which will be approved, at least every three years, by the General Meeting. To that end, it will take account of the positions filled by each director within the collegial body and the director's membership on the various committees and attendance at their meetings.~~

~~4.— Directors performing executive duties in addition will be entitled to receive the compensation for performance of those responsibilities contemplated in the contract entered into for that purpose between the director and the Company.~~

~~That contract will be adapted to the director compensation policy to be approved by the General Meeting, and must contemplate the amount of fixed annual compensation, the annual variable compensation and any multi-year variable compensation, including the parameters for earning it, as well as any possible indemnification for termination of the contract, provided that the termination is not motivated by breach of the director's duties as such, as well as any possible commitments of the Company to pay amounts as insurance premiums or contribution to savings or pension schemes.~~

~~5. The Board of Directors fixes the compensation of the directors for performance of their executive duties and, with the required legal majority, approves the contracts of inside directors with the Company, which must be adapted to the compensation policy approved by the General Meeting.~~

~~6. In addition to the compensation scheme contemplated in the foregoing sections, the directors will be entitled to be compensated by way of the delivery of shares, or by delivery of option rights on shares or by compensation indexed to the value of shares, provided that the application of any such compensation scheme is previously resolved by the General Shareholders Meeting. That resolution, if applicable, will determine the maximum number of shares that may be assigned in each year to this system of compensation, the exercise price or the system for calculation of the exercise price of stock options, the value of the shares, if any, taken as a reference and the term of the plan.~~

~~The Company may consider the share-based remuneration of non-executive directors provided they retain such shares until the end of their mandate. This condition, however, will not apply to shares that the director must dispose of to defray costs related to their acquisition.~~

~~7. The director compensation policy as applicable will be adjusted to the compensation scheme contemplated in these Articles and in the Board of Directors Regulations, will be of the legally contemplated scope and will be submitted by the Board of Directors for approval of the General Shareholders Meeting with the frequency established by law.~~

~~8.—The Company will secure civil liability insurance for its directors on the usual terms commensurate with the circumstances of the Company~~

Article 29.- ~~Article 31.-~~ Company action for liability. Standing of minority

Shareholders holding shares representing at least ~~three~~five percent of capital will be entitled to:

- (i) request call of the general meeting to decide regarding exercise of the corporate action for liability against directors;
- (ii) bring the corporate action for liability against directors in the defence of the interests of the company when the ~~Board of Directors~~Management Body does not call the General Meeting requested for that purpose, when the Company within the term of one month after the date of adoption of the corresponding resolution does not bring the action, or when the decision of the general meeting is to not bring the action for liability; and
- (iii) oppose the adoption by the General Meeting of a resolution settling or waiving exercise of the corporate action for liability against directors.

~~Article 32.—~~ Appointment to positions on the Board of Directors

~~1.—The Board of Directors from among the directors, after a report from the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, will appoint its Chairman and, optionally, one or more Vice Chairmen. If there is more than one Vice Chairman, each of the Vice Chairmen will be numbered. Number priority will determine the order in which the Vice Chairmen replace the Chairman in the event of absence, disability or resignation.~~

~~2.—The appointment of the Chairman will require the favourable voting of two thirds of the Board of Directors members when the director to be appointed as Chairman is an executive director.~~

~~3.—The Board of Directors, after a report from the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, will appoint a Secretary and, optionally, an Assistant Secretary. Non-directors may be appointed, in which case they will act with voice but not vote.~~

~~The Assistant Secretary will replace the Secretary in cases of absence, disability or resignation.~~

~~4. If the Chairman of the Board of Directors performs executive functions, the Board of Directors, with the abstention of the executive directors, must appoint a coordinating director among the independent directors to:~~

~~(i) Request that the Chairman of the Board of Directors call a meeting thereof when the coordinating director deems that to be appropriate.~~

~~(ii) Request inclusion of matters on the agenda of meetings of the Board of Directors.~~

~~(iii) Coordinate, call for a meeting and receive the opinions of the external directors.~~

~~(iv) Conduct the periodic evaluation of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and coordinate his or her succession plan.~~

~~(v) Chair the Board of Directors when the Chairman and the Vice Chairman, if any, are absent.~~

~~(vi) Keep contacts with investors and shareholders in order to know their points of view for the purpose of making an opinion about their concerns, in particular, relating to the corporate governance of the Company.~~

~~Article 33. — Call of Board of Directors~~

~~1. The Board of Directors will meet with such frequency as is appropriate to the proper performance of its duties, at least quarterly and eight times per year, following the matters and dates program established at the beginning of the year and under the circumstances determined by the Board of Directors Regulations. The Board of Directors will be called by the Chairman or, in the event of death or absence of the Chairman, or the Chairman's being unable or finding it impossible to attend, by the Vice Chairman or the coordinating director if appointed, whenever it deems it to be necessary or appropriate. It must necessarily be called if so requested by at least three members of the Board of Directors or, if that number is more than one third of the~~

~~members of the Board, if so requested by directors constituting at least one third of the members of the Board of Directors. Notwithstanding this, directors may directly call a meeting in accordance with the law.~~

~~2. — The call, which always will include the agenda for the meeting and all information necessary for deliberation, will be sent by any means allowing its receipt, to each of the members of the Board appearing in the records of the Company, at least forty eight hours in advance of the day indicated for the meeting.~~

~~No call will be necessary if all members of the Board of Directors were called in the prior session (and if there were no changes of directors).~~

~~3. — A meeting of the Board of Directors will be considered to be validly held without any need for a call if all of its members, present in person or by proxy, unanimously agree to hold the meeting and the items of the agenda to be discussed.~~

~~Also, if no director objects, the Board of Directors may vote in writing, without a meeting.~~

~~4. — The Board of Directors will hold its meetings at the registered office, unless another meeting place is indicated in the call.~~

~~5. — Without prejudice to the foregoing, the Board of Directors may meet in multiple places connected by systems allowing recognition and identification of those in attendance, permanent communication among those in attendance regardless of the place they are, as well as participation and voting, all in real time.~~

~~Those attending at any of the sites will, for all purposes related to the Board of Directors, be treated as having attended the same single meeting. The meeting will be deemed to be held where the greatest number of directors are in attendance and, in the event of a tie, where the Chairman of the Board of Directors or the one presiding in his absence is in attendance.~~

~~Article 34. — **Board of Directors quorum**~~

~~1. — The Board of Directors will be validly constituted to deliberate and resolve on any matter with the attendance, in person or by proxy, of one half plus one of the number~~

~~of members thereof theretofore established by the General Meeting, even if not all such positions are filled and even if vacancies have subsequently occurred.~~

~~2. The members of the Board of Directors may only grant proxies to other members of the Board. External directors may only grant proxies to other such members of the Board of Directors.~~

~~3. The proxy must be granted using any written method, specially for each meeting, and notified to the Chairman.~~

~~Article 35. **Manner of deliberation and adoption of resolutions of the Board of Directors**~~

~~1. The Chairman will submit the matters on the agenda for deliberation. Any of the members of the Board, prior to the meeting or during it, will be entitled to submit any other matter to deliberation and voting, in the order determined in the prudent discretion of the Chairman.~~

~~2. Once the Chairman considers a matter to have been sufficiently debated, the Chairman will submit it to vote, with each member of the Board, present in person or by proxy, having one vote.~~

~~3. Resolutions will be adopted by absolute majority of the members of the Board attending in person or by proxy, unless another majority is required by law or the Articles of Association. In the event of a tie, the Chairman will not have a casting vote.~~

~~4. The resolutions of the Board of Directors may be challenged by the directors or shareholders that, individually or collectively, represent at least one per mil of capital, on the terms established in the applicable regulations.~~

~~Article 36. **Board of Directors minutes**~~

~~1. The minutes of the Board of Directors meeting will be prepared by the Secretary of the Board or, in his absence, by the Assistant Secretary. In their absence the minutes will be prepared by the person appointed by those in attendance as the Secretary for the meeting.~~

~~2. The minutes will be approved by the Board itself, at the end of the meeting or at the immediately following meeting.~~

Article 30.- ~~Article 37.-~~ Powers of representation

1. Authority to represent the Company, judicially and otherwise, will correspond to the ~~Board of Directors, which will act as a collegial body~~ sole director.

2. ~~The power of representation of board committees will be governed by the provisions of the delegation resolution. Absent a provision to the contrary, the power of representation will be deemed to be granted individually to the managing director, if any, and if an executive committee is constituted, to its Chairman. When the Board delegates its powers to an executive committee or one or several managing directors, it shall indicate their action regime.~~
3. ~~The Secretary of the Board of Directors and, if applicable, the Assistant Secretary thereof, are~~ sole director is responsible for arranging for attestation of the resolutions adopted by the corporate bodies as public documents.

3. ~~4. Attestation of corporate resolutions as public documents may also be undertaken by the member or members of the Board of Directors expressly authorised to do so by the corresponding body at the meeting at which the resolutions are adopted and, if not, by the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman and Managing Director(s).~~ Attestation of corporate resolutions as public documents by any other person will require the granting of the relevant deed of powers of attorney, which may be general for all kind of resolutions, in which case it shall be registered with the Commercial Registry. This procedure will not be applicable to attest corporate resolutions as public documents if the minutes or notarial testimony thereof are taken as reference.

~~Article 38.-~~ Delegation of authority

~~1. The Board of Directors may permanently delegate all or a part of its authority — except from those which cannot be delegated according to the law, the Articles of Association or the Board of Directors Regulations — to an executive committee and/or one or more managing directors, and determine the members of the Board that are to serve on the board committee and, if applicable, the manner of exercise of the authority granted to managing directors.~~

- ~~2. — The permanent delegation of authority and determination of the members of the Board that are to serve in those positions for validity will require the favourable vote of two-thirds of the number of members of the Board theretofore fixed by the General Meeting for composition of that body, even if that number is not fully covered or vacancies subsequently have occurred.~~
- ~~3. — In no case may there be any delegation of preparation of annual accounts and their presentation to the General Meeting, the authority of the Board to organise itself, as well as the other matters considered to be nondelegable by current regulations, nor those that the General Meeting has delegated to the latter, except in the latter case with express authorisation of the General Meeting.~~
- ~~4. — Notwithstanding the delegation, the Board of Directors will retain the delegated authority.~~
- ~~5. — The Board must constitute an Audit and Control Committee and a Appointments and Remuneration Committee with such rights of information, supervision, advice and proposal within the scope of their authority as are specified in these Articles of Association and developed in the Board of Directors Regulations.~~
- ~~6. — In addition, the Board may establish other committees with consultative or advisory duties, and these committees may, nevertheless, be exceptionally given decision-making powers.~~

~~Article 39. — **Audit and Control Committee. Composition, authority and functioning**~~

- ~~1. — The Board of Directors will constitute a permanent Audit and Control Committee, an internal body of an informational and consulting nature, with no executive functions, with rights of information, advice and proposal within the scope of its authority as indicated in section 3 of this article. The Audit and Control Committee will be comprised of a minimum of three and a maximum of five directors, appointed by the Board of Directors itself. They must be non-executive directors. The majority of the Audit and Control Committee members will be independent, and at least one of them will be appointed considering his/her accounting and/or audit knowledge and experience.~~

~~2. The Board of Directors will also appoint its Chairman from among the independent directors that are members of that Committee. In addition, the Board of Directors also may appoint a Vice-Chairman if deemed appropriate, being applicable to the appointment of the Vice-Chairman the provisions for the appointment of the Chairman.~~

~~3. The position of Secretary of the Audit and Control Committee will be performed by the person appointed by the Board of Directors. The Secretary of the Audit and Control Committee may not be a member of such Committee, in which case it may not be a member of the Board of Directors. The Secretary of the Audit and Control Committee may be different to the Secretary of the Board of Directors.~~

~~4. The directors that are a part of the Audit Committee will remain in that office for so long as their appointments as directors of the Company remain in effect, unless the Board of Directors resolves otherwise. Renewal, re-election and removal of the directors comprising the Committee will be governed by resolutions of the Board of Directors.~~

~~The position of Chairman will be exercised for a maximum of four years, at the end of which the Chairman may not be re-elected as such until one year has passed after leaving office, without prejudice to continuing or being elected as a member of the Committee.~~

~~5. Notwithstanding any other task that may be assigned thereto from time to time by the Board of Directors, the Audit and Control Committee will exercise the following basic functions:~~

~~(i) Reporting to the General Meeting of shareholders on matters raised by shareholders in the General Meeting that fall under its responsibility and, in particular, in relation to the result of the audit, explaining how it has contributed to the integrity of the financial information and the role that the Committee has performed in this process.~~

~~(ii) Supervising the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company and its group, the internal audit and their systems for managing risks, including tax~~

~~risk and analyzing, in collaboration with the auditors, any significant weaknesses of the internal control system detected during the external audit, without affecting its independence. For these purposes and, if applicable, they may present recommendations or proposals to the Board and the corresponding term for its monitoring.~~

- ~~(iii) — Supervising the preparation and presentation of the statutory financial statements and presenting recommendations or proposals to the Board of Directors directed to safeguard its integrity.~~
- ~~(iv) — Making proposals to the Board of Directors, for submission to the General Meeting of shareholders, regarding the selection, appointment, re-election and replacement of the external auditors, taking responsibility of the process of selection, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, as well as the terms of the audit engagement, and regularly gathering information from the external auditors regarding the audit plan and its execution, while also preserving the auditors' independence in the exercise of their functions.~~
- ~~(v) — Supervising the activity of the Company's internal audit function.~~
- ~~(vi) — Establishing appropriate relationships with the external auditors in order to receive information, for examination by the Audit and Control Committee, on matters that may threaten the auditors' independence and any other matters relating to the audit process, and, where applicable, the authorization of the services other than those prohibited in the terms set out by applicable law, as well as any other communications provided for in audit legislation and other audit standards. In any event, the Audit and Control Committee shall receive, each year, written confirmation from the external auditors of their independence from the Company and entities directly or indirectly related to it and individualized and detailed information about any additional services of any kind rendered and the corresponding fees received from this entities by the external auditor or by the persons or entities related to it, in accordance with audit legislation.~~

- ~~(vii) Issuing a report each year, prior to the audit report, expressing an opinion on whether the independence of the external auditors or audit companies is jeopardized. This report shall give an opinion on the provision of the additional non-audit services referred to in the preceding paragraph, both individually considered and as a whole, and in relation to the auditors' independence regime or to the audit regulations.~~
 - ~~(viii) Reporting to the Board of Directors, prior to Board meetings, on all matters provided by law, the Articles of Association or the Board of Directors Regulations and, in particular, on the following matters: (i) the financial information the Company must publish periodically; (ii) the creation or acquisition of interests in special purpose vehicles or entities domiciled in countries or territories considered to be tax havens; and (iii) transactions with related parties.~~
 - ~~(ix) With regard to the external auditor: (i) to ensure its remuneration does not compromise its quality or independence; (ii) supervise that the Company notifies as a material event any change of external auditor to the National Securities Market Commission (*Comisión Nacional del Mercado de Valores*), accompanied by a statement of any disagreements arising with the outgoing auditor and the reasons for the same; (iii) to ensure that the Company and the external auditor adhere to current regulations on the provision of non-audit services, limits on the concentration of the auditor's business and, in general, other requirements concerning auditor independence.~~
 - ~~(x) To meet any company employee or manager, even ordering their appearance without the presence of another senior officer.~~
 - ~~(xi) Any others given to it by the Board of Directors in its corresponding Regulations.~~
- ~~6. The Audit and Control Committee will meet, ordinarily on a quarterly basis, in order to review the periodic financial information to be submitted to the stock market authorities as well as the information which the Board of Directors must approve and~~

~~include within its annual public documentation. It also will meet at the request of any of its members and when called by its Chairman. The Chairman is to call the meeting whenever the Board of Directors or its Chairman requests the issuance of a report or adoption of proposals and, in any event, whenever it is appropriate to the proper exercise of its authority. There will be a quorum when one half plus one of the directors that are members of the Committee are present in person or by proxy, adopting its resolutions by majority vote. In the event of a tie, the Chairman will not have a casting vote.~~

~~7. — The Board of Directors may develop the foregoing set of rules in its corresponding Regulations.~~

~~Article 40. — **Appointments and Remuneration Committee. Composition, authority and functioning**~~

~~1. — The Board of Directors will constitute a permanent Appointments and Remuneration Committee, an internal body of an informational and consulting nature, with no executive functions, with rights of information, advice and proposal within the scope of its authority as indicated in section 3 of this article. The Appointments and Remuneration Committee will be comprised of a minimum of three and a maximum of five directors, appointed by the Board of Directors itself, on proposal of the Chairman of the Board. They must be non-executive directors. The majority of the members of the Appointments and Compensation Committee will be independent directors.~~

~~2. — The Board of Directors will also appoint its Chairman from among the independent directors that are members of that Committee. In addition, the Board of Directors also may appoint a Vice-Chairman if deemed appropriate, being applicable to the appointment of the Vice-Chairman the provisions for the appointment of the Chairman.~~

~~3. — The position of Secretary of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee will be performed by the person appointed by the Board of Directors. The Secretary of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee may not be a member of such Committee, in which case it may not be a member of the Board of Directors. The~~

~~Secretary of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee may be different to the Secretary of the Board of Directors.~~

~~4. The directors that are a part of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee will remain in that office for so long as their appointments as directors of the Company remain in effect, unless the Board of Directors resolves otherwise. Renewal, re-election and removal of the directors comprising the Committee will be governed by resolutions of the Board of Directors.~~

~~5. Notwithstanding any other task that may be assigned thereto from time to time by the Board of Directors, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee will exercise with independence the following basic functions:~~

~~(i) Evaluating the skills, knowledge and experience required on the Board of Directors. For these purposes, it will define the functions and skills required of candidates that are to fill each vacancy and will evaluate the time and dedication necessary for them to be able to effectively perform their duties.~~

~~(ii) Establishing a goal for representation of women on the Board of Directors, and developing guidance on how to achieve that goal.~~

~~(iii) Making proposals to the Board of Directors of independent directors to be appointed by co-option or for submission to decision by the General Shareholders Meeting, and proposals for re-election or removal of those directors by the general shareholders meeting.~~

~~(iv) Reporting on proposals for the appointment of the other directors to be appointed by co-option or for submission to decision by the General Shareholders Meeting, and proposals for their re-election or removal by the General Shareholders Meeting.~~

~~(v) Reporting on proposals for appointment and removal of managerial employees and the basic terms of their contracts.~~

~~(vi) Examining and organising the succession of the chairman of the Board of Directors and the chief executive of the Company and, if appropriate, making~~

~~proposals to the Board of Directors so that that succession will occur in an orderly and planned manner.~~

~~(vii) Proposing to the Board of Directors the compensation policy for directors and general managers or those performing managerial employees functions under the direct supervision of the Board, executive committees or managing directors, as well as the individual compensation and other contractual conditions of inside directors, verifying and ensuring compliance therewith.~~

~~6. The functioning of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee will be governed by the rules determined by the Board of Directors in its corresponding Regulations.~~

TITLE IV.- ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Article 31.- ~~Article 41.-~~ **Preparation and verification of the annual accounts**

1. The financial year will begin on 1 January and end on 31 December of each year.
2. Within three months from the end of the financial year, the ~~Board of Directors~~Management Body, in accordance with the structure, principles and guidelines contained in the applicable regulations, will prepare and sign the annual accounts, the management report and the proposal for application of results and, if applicable, the consolidated annual accounts and management report. ~~The annual accounts and the management report must be signed by all of the directors. If the signature of any director is missing, this fact will be indicated on each of the documents from which it is missing, with an express statement of the reason.~~
3. The annual accounts and the management report will be reviewed by the statutory auditors on the terms provided by law.

Article 32.- ~~Article 42.-~~ **Approval of annual accounts and application of results**

1. The annual accounts of the Company will be submitted to the ordinary General Shareholders Meeting for approval.
2. Once the annual accounts have been approved, the General Meeting will resolve regarding allocation of results for the financial year.

3. The General Shareholders Meeting may resolve that the dividend will be paid in kind, in whole or in part, provided that the assets or securities to be distributed are homogeneous, are admitted to trading on an official market at the time of effectiveness of the resolution (or it is duly guaranteed by the Company that liquidity will be obtained within a maximum term of one year), and are not distributed for a value less than the value on the balance sheet of the Company. The foregoing also will apply to distribution of issue premium and reduction of capital by way of return of contributions.

Article 33.- ~~Article 43.-~~ Deposit of approved annual accounts

Within the month after approval of the annual accounts, the directors will present, for filing with the Commercial Registry of the registered office, certification of the resolutions of the general meeting approving the annual accounts and allocating results, attaching a copy of each of those accounts and, if applicable, copies of the management report and auditors' report. ~~The certification must be presented with signatures attested by a notary.~~

TITLE V.- WINDING UP AND LIQUIDATION OF THE COMPANY

Article 34.- ~~Article 44.-~~ Winding up of the company

The Company will be wound up:

- (i) By resolution by the General Shareholders Meeting called expressly for this purpose, adopted in accordance with these Articles of Association; and
- (ii) In any of the other cases contemplated in applicable regulations.

Article 35.- ~~Article 45.-~~ Liquidation

1. The Company having been wound up, the liquidation period will open, except in the event of a merger or split-up or any other case of assignment of all of the assets and liabilities.
2. The same General Shareholders Meeting that agrees to dissolve the Company will determine the terms of liquidation, which must be conducted by an odd number of liquidators appointed for this purpose by the General Shareholders Meeting.

3. From the time the Company is declared to be in liquidation, the representative powers of the management body to enter into new agreements and contract new obligations will cease, and the liquidators will assume the duties given thereto by applicable law.
4. For the conduct of the liquidation, division of the company's assets and cancellation of registration, the provisions of applicable regulations will apply.
5. The General Shareholders Meeting during the liquidation period will retain the same authority as during the normal life of the Company. In particular it will have the authority to approve liquidation accounts and the final liquidation balance sheet.
6. Regarding the assets and liabilities remaining after the liquidation of the Company, as for the legal acts to be formalized after the entries regarding the Company have been cancelled, law provisions will be applicable.

Article 46. — Transitional provision

~~As an exception to the provision of articles 4.3 and 41.1 of the Bylaws, the financial year beginning on 1 October 2017 shall end on 30 September 2018. Likewise, a financial year with an irregular term is established, which shall commence on 1 October 2018 and end on 31 December 2018.~~